

OTHM LEVEL 4 DIPLOMA IN LAW

Qualification Number: 610/1969/0

Specification | JANUARY 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

QUALIFICATION OBJECTIVES	3
QUALITY, STANDARDS AND RECOGNITIONS	3
REGULATORY INFORMATION	3
EQUIVALENCES	4
QUALIFICATION STRUCTURE	4
DEFINITIONS	4
ENTRY REQUIREMENTS	5
PROGRESSION	6
DELIVERY OF OTHM QUALIFICATIONS	6
ASSESSMENT AND VERIFICATION	6
RECOGNITION OF PRIOR LEARNING AND ACHIEVEMENT	7
EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY	7
LEVEL 4 UNIT SPECIFICATIONS	8
An Introduction to the English Legal System	9
Academic Writing and Research Skills for Law1	2
Contract Law1	5
Business Law	9
Public Law2	3
Criminal Law2	8
MPORTANT NOTES	25

QUALIFICATION OBJECTIVES

The objective of the OTHM Level 4 Diploma in Law qualification is to give learners the opportunities to develop knowledge and understanding of core legal principles and help build foundational professional and research skills.

Learners will study six units, worth 120 credits over one academic year equivalent to Year 1 of a three-year UK Bachelor's degree programme.

These qualifications are designed to provide opportunities for learners to acquire a broad range of knowledge and understanding and to develop a range of skills essential for a successful career in law, The qualification also provides the underpinning knowledge of the law contributing to preparation for the Solicitors Qualifying Examination.

QUALITY, STANDARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

OTHM Qualifications are approved and regulated by Ofqual (Office of Qualifications and Examinations Regulation). Visit register of Regulated Qualifications.

OTHM has progression arrangement with several UK universities that acknowledges the ability of learners after studying Level 3-7 qualifications to be considered for advanced entry into corresponding degree year/top up and Master's/top-up programmes.

REGULATORY INFORMATION

The Qualification Number (QN) should be used by centres when they wish to register their learners. Each unit within a qualification will also have a unique reference number (Unit code). The qualification and unit reference numbers will appear on learners' final certification documentation. The QN for the qualifications in this publication are:

Qualification Title	OTHM Level 4 DIPLOMA IN LAW
Ofqual Reference Number	610/1969/0
Regulation Start Date	12/1/2023
Operational Start Date	13/1/2023
Duration	1 year
Total Credit Value	120 Credits
Total Qualification Time (TQT)	1200 Hours
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	480 Hours
Sector Subject Area (SSA)	15.5 Law and legal services
Overall Grading Type	Pass / Fail
Assessment Methods	Coursework
Language of Assessment	English

EQUIVALENCES

OTHM qualifications at Level 4 and 5 represent practical knowledge, skills, capabilities and competences that are assessed in academic terms as being equivalent to Higher National Certificates (HNC) and Year 1 of a three-year UK Bachelor's degree programme.

QUALIFICATION STRUCTURE

The OTHM Level 4 Diploma in Law qualification consists of six mandatory units, 120 credits, 1200 hours Total Qualification Time (TQT) and the recommended Guided Learning Hours (GLH) for this qualification is a minimum of 480 hours.

To achieve the OTHM Level 4 Diploma in Law qualification, learners must achieve all120 credits.

All units are mandatory.

Unit Ref. No.	Unit Title	Level	Credit	GLH	TQT
R/650/4965	An Introduction to the English Legal System	4	20	80	200
T/650/4966	Academic Writing and Research Skills for Law	4	20	80	200
Y/650/4967	Contract Law	4	20	80	200
A/650/4968	Business Law	4	20	80	200
D/650/4969	Public Law	4	20	80	200
J/650/4970	Criminal Law	4	20	80	200

DEFINITIONS

Total Qualification Time (TQT) is the number of notional hours which represents an estimate of the total amount of time that could reasonably be expected to be required in order for a Learner to achieve and demonstrate the achievement of the level of attainment necessary for the award of a qualification.

Total Qualification Time is comprised of the following two elements -

- a) the number of hours which an awarding organisation has assigned to a qualification for Guided Learning, and
- b) an estimate of the number of hours a Learner will reasonably be likely to spend in preparation, study or any other form of participation in education or training, including assessment, which takes place as directed by but, unlike Guided Learning, not under the Immediate Guidance or Supervision of a lecturer, supervisor, tutor or other appropriate provider of education or training.

(Ofgual 15/5775 September 2015)

Guided Learning Hours (GLH) is defined as the hours that a teacher, lecturer or other member of staff is available to provide immediate teaching support or supervision to a student working towards a qualification.

Credit value is defined as being the number of credits that may be awarded to a Learner for the successful achievement of the learning outcomes of a unit. One credit is equal to 10 hours of TQT.

ENTRY REQUIREMENTS

These qualifications are designed for learners who are typically aged 18 and above.

The entry profile for learners is likely to include at least one of the following:

- Relevant Level 3 Diploma
- GCE Advanced level in 2 subjects or equivalent qualification
- Mature learners (over 21) with relevant management experience (learners must check with the delivery centre regarding this experience prior to registering for the programme)

English requirements: If a learner is not from a majority English-speaking country, they must provide evidence of English language competency. For more information visit the <u>English Language Expectations</u> page on the <u>OTHM website</u>

Centres should review the prior qualifications and experience of each learner and consider whether they provide the necessary foundations to undertake the programme of study at level 5.

PROGRESSION

Successful completion of the OTHM Level 4 Diploma in Law provides learners the opportunity for a wide range of academic progressions including the OTHM Level 5 Diploma in Law.

DELIVERY OF OTHM QUALIFICATIONS

OTHM do not specify the mode of delivery for its qualifications, therefore OTHM centres are free to deliver this qualification using any mode of delivery that meets the needs of their learners. However, OTHM centres should consider the learners' complete learning experience when designing the delivery of programmes.

It is important that centres develop an approach and delivery module to teaching and learning that supports the progression and stretch of learners through the level 4 and 5 units of the OTHM Level 5 Extended Diploma qualifications.

OTHM Centres must ensure that the chosen mode of delivery does not unlawfully or unfairly discriminate, whether directly or indirectly, and that equality of opportunity is promoted. Where it is reasonable and practicable to do so, it will take steps to address identified inequalities or barriers that may arise.

Guided Learning Hours (GLH) which are listed in each unit gives centres the number of hours of teacher-supervised or direct study time likely to be required to teach that unit.

ASSESSMENT AND VERIFICATION

All units within this qualification are internally assessed by the centre and externally verified by OTHM. The qualifications are criterion referenced, based on the achievement of all the specified learning outcomes.

To achieve a 'pass' for a unit, learners must provide evidence to demonstrate that they have fulfilled all the learning outcomes and meet the standards specified by all assessment criteria. Judgement that the learners have successfully fulfilled the assessment criteria is made by the assessor.

The assessor should provide an audit trail showing how the judgement of the learners' overall achievement has been arrived at.

Specific assessment guidance and relevant marking criteria for each unit are made available in the Assignment Brief document.

RECOGNITION OF PRIOR LEARNING AND ACHIEVEMENT

Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) is a method of assessment that considers whether learners can demonstrate that they can meet the assessment requirements for a unit through knowledge, understanding or skills they already possess and do not need to develop through a course of learning.

RPL policies and procedures have been developed over time, which has led to the use of a number of terms to describe the process. Among the most common are:

- Accreditation of Prior Learning (APL)
- Accreditation of Prior Experiential Learning (APEL)
- Accreditation of Prior Achievement (APA)
- Accreditation of Prior Learning and Achievement (APLA).

All evidence must be evaluated with reference to the stipulated learning outcomes and assessment criteria against the respective unit(s). The assessor must be satisfied that the evidence produced by the learner meets the assessment standard established by the learning outcome and its related assessment criteria at that particular level.

Most often RPL will be used for units. It is not acceptable to claim for an entire qualification through RPL. Where evidence is assessed to be only sufficient to cover one or more learning outcomes, or to partly meet the need of a learning outcome, then additional assessment methods should be used to generate sufficient evidence to be able to award the learning outcome(s) for the whole unit. This may include a combination of units where applicable.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

OTHM provides equality and diversity training to staff and consultants. This makes clear that staff and consultants must comply with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010, and all other related equality and diversity legislation, in relation to our qualifications.

We develop and revise our qualifications to avoid, where possible, any feature that might disadvantage learners because of their age, disability, gender, pregnancy or maternity, race, religion or belief, and sexual orientation.

If a specific qualification requires a feature that might disadvantage a particular group (e.g. a legal requirement regarding health and safety in the workplace), we will clarify this explicitly in the qualification specification.

LEVEL 4 UNIT SPECIFICATIONS

An Introduction to the English Legal System

Unit Reference Number	R/650/4965
Unit Title	An Introduction to the English Legal System
Unit Level	4
Number of Credits	20
Total Qualification Time (TQT)	200 hours
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	80 hours
Mandatory / Optional	Mandatory
Sector Subject Area (SSA)	15.5 Law and legal services
Unit Grading Structure	Pass/Fail

Unit Aims

The focus of this unit is the people and procedures involved in the operation of the English legal system. This unit aims to inform learners about the functions, structure and purpose of the civil and criminal Courts, along with understanding of the personnel involved in the administration of justice. Learners will gain knowledge of how laws are created and influences on the development of law. The unit will also provide learners with information on various methods of alternative dispute resolution.

Learning Outcomes – The learner will:	Assessment Criteria – The learner can:	Indicative content
Understand how laws are created in England and Wales.	 1.1 Explain the court hierarchy. 1.2 Describe the nature and purpose of criminal and civil courts. 1.3 Describe how case law is created and developed. 1.4 Explain how legislation is created and developed. 	 Comparison between criminal and civil law The nature of law and morality The court hierarchy in England and Wales Overview of Civil and Criminal court structures, including appeal courts The role of criminal courts, including powers and aims The role of civil courts, including powers and aims The Doctrine of Judicial Precedent, ratio

		 decidendi, obita dictum, avoidance of judicial precedent, including by 'distinguishing'. Persuasive precedent. The process of creation legislation, including green papers, white papers, readings to royal assent, influences on development of legislation, the concept of Parliamentary Sovereignty/ Supremacy. Codification of laws, repeals and consolidation of law. The role of delegated legislation, including types of delegation, the purpose of delegation and its limitations Statutory interpretation and the various judicial approaches to interpretation, including the literal approach, golden rule, mischief rule and purposive approach. The relationship between parliamentary supremacy and the approaches to statutory interpretation. The role of the Law Commission in the
Understand the role of the legal profession.	 2.1 Identify the judges that sit in each court within the hierarchy. 2.2 Explain the difference between the role of a solicitor and a barrister within the English legal system. 2.3 Describe the ethical responsibilities of the legal profession. 2.4 Analyse the role of the jury system. 	 development of laws How judges are appointed to each of the courts within the hierarchy, including the role and appointment of magistrates The education and training requirements of a solicitor and a barrister The different purpose and skills of a solicitor and a barrister, a solicitors rights of audience, the role of Queens Counsel Legal ethics of a solicitor and a barrister, the 'cab rank' rule The jury system, including the process of jury selection, and the perceived benefits and detriments of this system

Understand the role of alternative dispute resolution.	 3.1 Explain the perceived difficulties in accessing civil justice. 3.2 Evaluate the role of Alternative Dispute Resolution in civil disputes. 3.3 Analyse the role of restorative justice in the criminal courts. 	 Access to justice, legal fees and legal aid, public and private funding The perceived difficulties of civil litigation, including costs, time, and lack of lay person involvement The role of Alternative Dispute Resolution in addressing the perceived deficiencies in court resolution The role of meditation, arbitration, and tribunals. The potential problems with Alternative Dispute Resolution, including lack of understanding, imbalance of powers, non binding agreements, and a lack of legal protection The purpose of restorative justice in the criminal justice system The benefits and difficulties of restorative justice
		The benefits and difficulties of restorative justice, including low participation and party protection

To achieve a 'pass' for this unit, learners must provide evidence to demonstrate that they have fulfilled all the learning outcomes and meet the standards specified by all assessment criteria.

Learning Outcomes to be met	Assessment criteria to be covered	Type of assessment	Word count (approx. length)
All 1 to 3	All ACs under LO1 to LO3	Coursework	3000 words

- English Legal System, 21st Edition by Emily Allbon; Sanmeet Kaur Dua, Published by Pearson
- The English Legal System, 19th Edition, by Slapper and Kelly, Published by Routledge
- The English Legal System, 31st May 2021 by Alisdair Gillespie; Siobhan Weare, Published by OUP Oxford

Academic Writing and Research Skills for Law

Unit Reference Number	T/650/4966
Unit Title	Academic Writing and Research Skills for Law
Unit Level	4
Number of Credits	20
Total Qualification Time (TQT)	200 hours
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	80 hours
Mandatory / Optional	Mandatory
Sector Subject Area (SSA)	15.5 Law and legal services
Unit Grading Structure	Pass/Fail

Unit Aims

The aim of this unit is to provide learners with understanding of the skills needed to conduct legal research, Academic writing skills will also be a focus of the unit. Learners will consider various types of assessment and the skills and resources applicable thereto. Learners will also understand how to find laws, cite laws, and apply laws to support legal arguments and conclusions.

Learning Outcomes – The learner will:	Assessment Criteria – The learner can:	Indicative Content
Understand how to research case law.	1.1 Identify where to find case law.1.2 Explain how to read case law.1.3 Analyse the difference between citing judicial legal reasoning and citing legal facts of a case.	 Researching All England Law Reports and locating case law Reading case law Outline of Case headnotes Differentiating the facts, legal reasoning, and outcome of case law Citing legal reasoning within case law

Understand how to research legislative requirements.	 2.1 Identify where to find legislation. 2.2 Explain how to read statute. 2.3 Describe how to cite statute. 2.4 Research a statute and explain the influences that impacted on its progress into law 	 The role of green and white papers How to research statute The use of Hansard How to cite Acts Of Parliament Accessing Acts Of Parliament Reading and paraphrasing sections of statute The rules of statutory interpretation: • literal rule • golden rule • mischief rule • purposive approach.
Understand skills of legal citation and writing.	 3.1 Describe how to plan and structure various types of legal assignment. 3.2 Assess the role legal citation in academic assessments. 3.3 Explain the need to apply the command verb in academic writing. 	 Planning and structuring legal essay. How to approach a problem/issue spotting or scenario- based question using the Identify Define Explain Apply (IDEA) approach/other approaches. Identifying legal issues, potential liabilities, relevant laws, and research to support conclusions reached/advice given. Using legal dictionaries and academic textbooks Researching and reading journal articles Differentiating primary sources and secondary sources Report writing The role of command verbs in legal assessment; how to analyse, evaluate, assess, and advise within legal assignments The importance of being critical, rather than descriptive How to use quotations to support legal ideas and arguments Using the Harvard Referencing system Using Turnitin Reading the similarity index and acceptable similarity scores based on the assessment level and type

		•	Plagiarism, paraphrasing and the use of legalese
Be able to analyse personal strengths and areas for development in relation to academic writing skills.	 4.1 Describe the range of approaches to learning and study used. 4.2 Explain the importance of independent learning skills. 4.3 Identify and record development needs and specify priority areas for development 4.4 Develop a plan for further improvement. 	•	Academic progress: evaluate content of own work, own skills development, Academic English ability, academic competencies, personal skills and qualities, personal skills for academic work (time management, initiative, perseverance flexibility, responding positively, to change and feedback); strengths and weaknesses. Action plan: for academic development, for personal development

To achieve a 'pass' for this unit, learners must provide evidence to demonstrate that they have fulfilled all the learning outcomes and meet the standards specified by all assessment criteria.

Learning Outcomes to be met	Assessment criteria to be covered	Type of assessment	Word count (approx. length)
All 1 to 4	All ACs under LO1 to LO4	Portfolio of evidence	3000 words

- Legal Research, Analysis, and Writing, 4th Edition by William H. Putman, JD; Jennifer R. Albright, JD, Published by Cengage
- Legal Research, Analysis, and Writing: 6th edition, By Joanne Hames; Yvonne Ekern, Published by Pearson

Contract Law

Unit Reference Number	Y/650/4967
Unit Title	Contract Law
Unit Level	4
Number of Credits	20
Total Qualification Time (TQT)	200 hours
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	80 hours
Mandatory / Optional	Mandatory
Sector Subject Area (SSA)	15.5 Law and legal services
Unit Grading Structure	Pass/Fail

Unit Aims

The aim of this unit is to provide learners with an understanding of the requirements and formalities of a legally binding agreement. The fundamentals of offer and acceptance will form the basis of the unit, and the learner will understand factors that may defeat the validity of an agreement. The ways in which a contract may be breached will be a focal point of learning, as will potential remedies applicable to various types of contractual breach.

Learning Outcomes – The learner will:	Assessment Criteria – The learner can:	Indicative content
Understand the requirements of a binding agreement.	 1.1 Describe how to make a legally binding offer and acceptance. 1.2 Explain how offer and acceptance may be withdrawn. 1.3 Explain the terms invitation to treat and the intention to create legal relations. 1.4 Analyse the role of consideration in contractual agreements. 	 Identifying parties to a contract Making an offer Communicating an offer Accepting an offer Communicating acceptance of an offer The postal rule and exceptions to the rule Electronic acceptance and the postal rule Revocation of an offer Withdrawing acceptance before offeror receipt of

		 acceptance Difference between invitation to treat and offer Consideration Promissory estoppel Intention to create legal relations Rebutting the presumption to create legal relations in social/domestic relations Honour clauses in business relations Privity of contract
Understand the contents of a contract.	2.1 Define statutory express terms.2.2 Explain how terms may be implied in common law.2.3 Evaluate the validity of exclusion clauses.	 Express terms and methods of incorporation Terms implied by custom, trade, and usage Conditions, warranties, and innominate terms Discharge of remaining contractual duties on breach of terms Exclusion clauses, limitation clauses and operation of these in business Common law incorporation of exclusion clauses Statutory governance of exclusion clauses, Unfair Contract Terms Act 1977, Consumer Rights Act 2015 Severance of exclusion clauses
Understand the factors that may vitiate a contract.	 3.1 Describe various types of contractual mistake and misrepresentation. 3.2 Analyse how lack of capacity, illegality and public policy may void a contract. 3.3 Assess how undue influence and duress may void a contract. 	 Capacity to enter contractual relations Minors' contractual capacity and contracts for necessaries Intoxication and intention to create legal relations A 'meeting of the minds' requirement Contracts void on the grounds of public policy, including certain pre-nuptial agreements Statutory illegality

4. Understand how a contract may be breached.	 4.1 Explain various types of contract breach, including anticipatory and repudiatory breach. 4.2 Describe the calculation of damages for breach of contract. 4.3 Assess the role of equitable remedies in contractual breach. 	 Misrepresentation; fraudulent, innocent, and negligent misrepresentation and consequences Mistake; common mistake, mutual mistake, unilateral mistake The effect of mistake on the contract and the remedies available to the innocent party Duress and undue influence, including in family relations and professional capacity Frustration of a contract by destruction of subject matter, death of parties, illegality, impossibility of performance in manner agreed Breach of contract by one or more parties Anticipatory breach and repudiatory breach The effect of breach of contract on the remaining contractual duties Liquidated damages clauses and penalty clauses Calculation of damages, expectation loss, market value, loss of enjoyment Equitable remedies; rectification, specific performance, and injunction Requirements for accessing equitable remedies, including clean hands and laches
---	---	--

To achieve a 'pass' for this unit, learners must provide evidence to demonstrate that they have fulfilled all the learning outcomes and meet the standards specified by all assessment criteria.

Learning Outcomes to be met	Assessment criteria to be covered	Type of assessment	Word count (approx. length)
All 1 to 4	All ACs under LO1 to LO4	Portfolio of evidence	3000 words

- Poole's Textbook on Contract Law, Fifteenth edition, 2021, Robert Merkin QC, Severine Saintier, June 2021, OUP
- Contract Law, Texts, Cases and Materials, Ewan McKendrick, May 2020, OUP

Business Law

Unit Reference Number	A/650/4968
Unit Title	Business Law
Unit Level	4
Number of Credits	20
Total Qualification Time (TQT)	200 hours
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	80 hours
Mandatory / Optional	Mandatory
Sector Subject Area (SSA)	15.5 Law and legal services
Unit Grading Structure	Pass/Fail

Unit Aims

This unit aims to inform learners about the requirements and structures various types of business. The formation and dissolution of partnerships, limited liability partnerships and companies will be a focus of the unit. Learners will also be introduced to the concepts of unlimited liability and limited liability, as they apply to the various business organisations studied. The unit will also provide information on the agency powers specific to various business structures, along with associated labilities.

Learning Outcomes –	Assessment Criteria –	Indicative Content
The learner will:	The learner can:	
1. Understand the principles of	1.1 Explain different types of partnership.	Sole traders
partnership law.	1.2 Describe the concept of limited and unlimited liability.	 Partnerships under the Partnerships Act 1890 (PA)
	1.3 Explain how partnerships are formed and terminated.1.4 Define the powers and liabilities of partners.	 Partnership formed when two or more people agree to run a business together and carry out that agreement.
	1.5 Analyse the formalities of forming and dissolving a Limited Liability Partnership.	Written agreement not required but preferable, particularly if parties wish to override statutory implications. E.g. Partnership Act 1890

Understand how to form a company.	 2.1 Explain the formal requirements of company registration. 2.2 Describe the difference between private and public companies. 2.3 Analyse the doctrine of incorporation. 2.4 Explain when the veil of incorporation may be lifted. 2.5 Evaluate the role of company directors. 	 Reasons for dissolution of the partnership, including death, illegality etc. PA 1890- every partner is an agent of the firm and his other partners. Liability of incoming partners and retiring partners Retiring partner avoidance of liability on future contracts Sole traders, partnerships, and personal liability Limited Liability Partnerships (LLP), Limited Liability Partnership Act 2000, members cannot lose more than they invested The LLP is a separate legal person from its members. LLP has the tax status of partnership with limited liability for members. Effects of the dissolution of the partnership. A company has a separate legal personality from its members. The company, as an artificial person The doctrine of incorporation The company is liable on all its debts and contracts. Lifting the veil of incorporation Companies limit the liability of members to specified amounts in the event of winding up Company limited by shares Company limited by guarantee A Public Company, the constitution states it is public, and it has met required registration necessary for a public company under the Companies Act 2006. Different types of company director; de facto, shadow director and managing director Directors are agents of the company, not the
-----------------------------------	---	---

		 members agents Directors' statutory duties to the company under the Companies Act 2006, including reasonable skill, care and diligence, avoid conflicts of interest and declare an interest in a proposed agreement.
Understand the agency powers created within Limited Liability Partnership's and Companies.	 3.1 Describe the ways in which an agency relationship may be created. 3.2 Explain the powers and authority of an agent. 3.3 Evaluate the agency powers and liabilities of a partner in a partnership 3.4 Evaluate the agency powers of a partner in a limited liability partnership. 3.5 Analyse the agency powers and liabilities of a company director. 3.6 Recommend legal solutions for resolving a range of disputes, using examples to demonstrate how a party might obtain legal advice and support. 	 Creation of agency relationships The agent and the principal fiduciary relationship Agency through express authority and implied authority Agency through ratification Apparent authority of an agent The duties of an agent to the principal, including obeying the principals instructions, avoiding secret profits and conflicts of interest Partners are agents of the firm and agents of the other partners. Partners have actual and usual authority to bind each other in contracts and torts. Vicarious liability of partners Each partner is an agent of the partnership, they can bind the other partner/s to contracts. As with usual rules of agency, the partner only binds partnership if has authority to make the transaction/contract. Company directors as agents of the company. A company director has actual or usual authority to bind the company. Company director's apparent authority through holding out or estoppel. Limited Liability Partnership, every member is an agent of the LLP. The LLP is bound by members' acts according to rules of agency.

To achieve a 'pass' for this unit, learners must provide evidence to demonstrate that they have fulfilled all the learning outcomes and meet the standards specified by all assessment criteria.

Learning Outcomes to be met	Assessment criteria to be covered	Type of assessment	Word count (approx. length)
All 1 to 3	All ACs under LO1 to LO3	Portfolio of evidence	3000 words

- Business Law, Sixth Edition, James Marson, Katy Ferris, May 2020, OUP
- Business Law, Ninth Edition, Ewan Macintyre, Pearson

Public Law

Unit Reference Number	D/650/4969
Unit Title	Public Law
Unit Level	4
Number of Credits	20
Total Qualification Time (TQT)	200 hours
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	80 hours
Mandatory / Optional	Mandatory
Sector Subject Area (SSA)	15.5 Law and legal services
Unit Grading Structure	Pass/Fail

Unit Aims

This unit aims to inform learners about the nature and purpose of constitutions, differing between written and unwritten forms. The separation of powers will be a focus of the unit, with learners examining the relationship between the legislative, executive and judicial branches of state. The role of the monarchy will also be considered. Learners will be informed about the powers of parliament, as well as the checks and balances of power through an impartial and non-political judiciary and its judicial review.

Learning Outcomes –	Assessment Criteria –	Indicative content
The learner will:	The learner can:	
3.1 Understand the nature of constitutions and the separation of powers.	1.1 Describe the nature and purpose of written and unwritten constitutions.1.2 Analyse various types of constitution and constitutional conventions.1.3 Explain the separation of powers.	 A constitution Written and unwritten constitutions, rigid or flexible Sources of law where a constitution is unwritten Most democratic countries have written constitutions, the UK has an unwritten constitution The European Convention on Human rights and the Magna Carta of 1215 Federal and unitary constitutions

3.2 Understand Parliamentary Powers.	2.1 Analyse the relationship between the two houses of UK Parliament. 2.2 Describe the relationship between parliament and government. 2.3 Evaluate the concept of Parliamentary sovereignty.	 Republican and monarchical constitutions Constitutional conventions, legal and non legal sources of law The nature and scope of conventions The role of the Executive Executive powers The three branches of state and their respective roles and powers; legislative, executory and judiciary. Assess how separate the three powers are within the UK. The Constitutional Reform Act 2005, the rule of law The role of the monarch The monarchy, the head of state, the administration, Her Majesty's government, the Prime Minister and Cabinet, jurisdictions without a monarchy, constitutional theory, governments and devolution, central, regional and local government Parliament as the legislative branch The relationship and powers of the House of Commons and the House of Lords The 'Westminster model' of government as drawn from the majority party or parties in the House of Commons and House of Lords. The influence of individual MPs and Lords to create law through Private Members' Bills. Select committees' powers to question and challenge government ministers Direct democracy as a challenge to the Westminster model, including referendums and epetitions Defining the executive The function of the executive
--------------------------------------	---	--

Prerogative power
The royal prerogative
 Political or executive prerogative
Government prerogative powers derived from common law
 The parliamentary executive and scrutiny of government ministers
Collective and individual responsibility to parliament
Parliament as a constitutional check on the executive
Ministerial responsibility and the Ministerial Code
Parliamentary privilege
Devolution of parliament
 Parliamentary sovereignty and the European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR)
The Human Rights Act 1998 'interpretive duty' under s3 and declaration of incompatibility' s4
Parliaments power to delegate law making powers, statutory instruments and by-laws
Parliamentary control and accountability for delegated legislation

- 3.3 Understand the role of Judicial Review.
- 3.1 Explain the role of the Judiciary.
- 3.2 Analyse how the judiciary upholds the separation of powers.
- 3.3 Assess the role of the judiciary as a means of controlling government bodies.
- 3.4 Analyse the nature and purpose of judicial review.
- 3.5 Explain the grounds for judicial review.

- The judicial arm of the state
- The judiciary is independent and impartial of any political party
- The judiciary has a scrutiny function through performing judicial review.
- The judiciary provides a 'neutral', non-political check on government
- The judiciary holds the government to account and regulates government in relation to the principles of administrative law.
- The judiciary ensures public bodies act with proportionality and in accordance with rules of natural justice.
- Judicial review is part of the UK constitution
- Judicial review is a means of enforcing the rule of law and ensuring public bodies do not exceed their legitimate powers
- Judicial review allows a claimant to challenge the decision of a government department, body or local authority in a court of law (High Court).
- The judge reviews the lawfulness of a decision or action of a public body.
- The judge will consider rules of fairness, integrity of process, and exercise of executive powers in accordance with the rights in the ECHR.
- Judicial Review operation and grounds
- procedural unfairness and legitimate expectation, includes impartiality and lack of representation, a public bodies failure to follow principles of natural justice
- on the ground of irrationality- no reasonable person, acting reasonably, could have made the decision '-Wednesbury unreasonableness'. This ground is rarely successful.

	 Decisions can also be overturned if the public authority has acted in a way incompatible with the Human Rights Act 1998; unless the public authority is acting under instruction of parliament. Parliamentary sovereignty, a judge cannot overturn primary legislation. Secondary legislation may be judicially reviewed.
--	---

To achieve a 'pass' for this unit, learners must provide evidence to demonstrate that they have fulfilled all the learning outcomes and meet the standards specified by all assessment criteria.

Learning Outcomes to be met	Assessment criteria to be covered	Type of assessment	Word count (approx. length)
All 1 to 3	All ACs under LO1 to LO3	Portfolio of evidence	3000 words

- Public Law: Text, Cases, and Materials, 4th Edition, Le Sueur, A. Sunkin, M. Khushal Murkens, J. E., 2019, Published by OUP
- Public Law, Fourth Edition, Mark Elliott, Robert Thomas, Published by OUP

Criminal Law

Unit Reference Number	J/650/4970
Unit Title	Criminal Law
Unit Level	4
Number of Credits	20
Total Qualification Time (TQT)	200 hours
Guided Learning Hours (GLH)	80 hours
Mandatory / Optional	Mandatory
Sector Subject Area (SSA)	15.5 Law and legal services
Unit Grading Structure	Pass/Fail

Unit Aims

This unit aims to provide learners with knowledge on the fundamental requirements of actus reus and mens rea within any criminal conviction. The unit will also consider the common law and statutory governance of violent crimes and non-violent crimes. Learners will be informed on potential capacity and necessity defences to criminal conduct, and the reasoned applicability of these defences.

Learning Outcomes –	Assessment Criteria –	Indicative content
The learner will: 1. Understand the actus reus and mens rea requirements of criminal offences.	The learner can: 1.1 Explain the nature of criminal conduct. 1.2 Define the requirement of actus reus. 1.3 Define the requirements of mens rea. 1.4 Assess the relationship between actus reus and mens rea.	 Criminal conduct as an act against the state The presumption of innocence and the standard of proof in a criminal court Both actus reus and mens rea must be proven beyond a reasonable doubt for any criminal conviction Actus reus- guilty act; all the elements of the offence other than the mens rea. Actus reus- voluntary and involuntary acts, liability for omissions where a legal duty of care exists
		Actus reus- factual and legal causation, novus

		actus interveniens, third party breaks in chain of
Understand the classification of violent offences and non-violent offences.	2.1 Explain common law offences against the person. 2.2 Describe fatal statutory offences against the person. 2.3 Explain offences of assault and battery. 2.4 Describe non-violent offences.	 actus interveniens, third party breaks in chain of causation Mens rea, guilty mind- the defendant must intend the consequences of his act, intention requires a high degree of fault to be proven. Foresight of virtual certainty Transferred mens area, transferred malice, subjective recklessness, negligence and gross negligence, coincidence of actus reus and mens rea Specific intent offences- intention is the mens rea. Basic intent offences- mens rea can be proven by recklessness. Strict liability offences as an exception to the actus reus and mens rea requirements Strict liability where the court will, and will not, presume mens rea Common law offence of murder The offence of manslaughter, constructive manslaughter, gross negligence manslaughter, subjective reckless manslaughter Voluntary and involuntary manslaughter Unlawful act manslaughter Unlawful act manslaughter Common law assault and battery occasioning actual bodily harm Offences Against the Person Act 1861, assault and battery occasioning actual bodily harm, unlawful and malicious wounding or causing grievous bodily harm with intent. Joint endeavours Non violent offences- Criminal Damage, Property offences, Theft Act 1968, theft, robbery, fraud offences and blackmail
		Computer Crime- The Computer Misuse Act 1990

		 s1 liability for attempt to access unauthorised data. The actus reus- causing the computer to 'perform any function' The mens rea- intention to access unauthorised data/program, defendant must be aware they do not have authorisation to access
Understand defences to criminal conduct.	3.1 Define self-defence. 3.2 Explain the insanity defence. 3.3 Describe the criminal liability of minors.	 Capacity defences- voluntary and involuntary intoxication, intoxication by legal and illegal substances, automatism, mistake Necessity- a very limited defence Self defence is a complete defence. Defendant believed they were facing an unjust threat and responded with a reasonable level of force. Common law self defence Statutory self defence Criminal Law Act 1967, including assisting others and prevention of crime Insanity defence- defendant claims they were insane at the time of the offence Insanity- a defect of reasoning or disease of the mind. The defendant did not know the nature or quality of their actions or did not know their action was wrongdoing. Diminished responsibility defence and insanity defence. Duress, coercion and entrapment defences Minors criminal liability- children under 10 years of age, Children and Young Persons Act 1933. May have civil repercussions for criminal actions. Minors aged 10-14 years, Crime and Disorder Act 1998, capacity for criminal liability and understanding of wrongful nature of the actions.

To achieve a 'pass' for this unit, learners must provide evidence to demonstrate that they have fulfilled all the learning outcomes and meet the standards specified by all assessment criteria.

Learning Outcomes to be met	Assessment criteria to be covered	Type of assessment	Word count (approx. length)
All 1 to 3	All ACs under LO1 to LO3	Portfolio of evidence	3000 words

- Ashworth's Principles of Criminal Law, Tenth Edition, Jeremy Horder, April 2022, Published by OUP
- Criminal Law, 16th Edition, Smith; Hogan; Ormerod, Published by OUP

GUIDANCE FOR THE USE OF LEGAL RESEARCH RESOURCES AND MATERIALS

Research material can be drawn from a wide range of different research resources. As well as using traditional sources such as the primary legal sources, and books and journal articles, you may want to use news items, government reports, statistical or audio-visual material.

Some materials such as scholarly books and journals go through a rigorous 'peer review' process where they are analysed by experts in the field for reliability and quality.

However, it can be more difficult to establish the provenance of other sources of information - for example anyone can create and disseminate information via the web.

In an information rich society, it's crucial to remember that not all information resources are equal! As a researcher, you must <u>evaluate</u> the information you find and decide whether the content is scholarly, accurate and authoritative research material.

Learners should ensure that their cited research sources have:

- **Currency**: the timeliness of the information
- **Relevance**: the importance of the information for your needs
- Authority: the source of the information
- Accuracy: the reliability, truthfulness, and correctness of the content
- **Purpose**: the reason the information exists

Case Law

Case law is a key primary legal source.

When you are using the online databases for case law searching, many offer contextual information to help broaden your research and connect you with related materials. This can be particularly useful for exploring issues in depth and is also a very efficient way to discover related research materials.

Legislation

Legislation is one of the primary sources of written law.

You can use online legal databases such as <u>Legislation.gov.uk</u> (UK) to locate specific pieces of legislation such as Acts and Statutory Instruments. As with case law, make use of the database 'added value features' to broaden your research and explore connections between legislative provisions and related case law and commentary.

Treaty

A treaty is an agreement made by negotiation under international law. Treaties are entered into by countries or other legal authorities and once they are formally agreed and signed by the participating bodies, they are usually ratified by the law-making authority of each country/ signatory ie <u>United</u> Nations Treaty collection

Books

Books, such as textbooks, are good for providing an overview of a topic. They undergo an editorial process and are usually written by experts in the subject or professional authors. They contain reference lists or bibliographies so that you can broaden your research by following up leads to related publications.

Books take time to produce, so may not always contain the most up to date information. In some subject areas, such as Law it is important to check you are using the most up to date edition of a book.

Journals

Journals can provide you with up-to-date discussion of research topics as they are published more quickly and regularly than books e.g. weekly, monthly, and quarterly or annually, depending on the publication.

Journal articles are written by researchers and experts in their field. Scholarly or academic journals go through a "peer review" process, where a panel of experts assesses the article before it is approved for publication, giving you reassurance that the information is reliable. Like books, the more scholarly articles also contain reference lists or bibliographies so that you can broaden your research by following up leads to related publications.

Reference Materials

Reference resources such as almanacs, dictionaries, encyclopaedias and thesauri enable you to examine facts and statistics about the world, decipher abbreviations and definitions and gain an overview of a topic

They can be really useful resources as you begin your background research into a topic before you move on to more in-depth research.

Publications

Official publications are the documents and materials produced by the government and governmental departments during the course of government business.

Content ranges from statements of law and policy to government reports and statistics.

These publications can be a valuable primary research source and are especially useful to those researching in law.

Listed below are some examples of useful publication links to those researching UK, EU and International law: This list is not exhaustive and there are many other publications/websites that you can use by conducting your own research.

UK Law

<u>Legislation.gov.uk</u> carries most types of legislation and accompanying explanatory documents and you can use this site to locate specific pieces of legislation such as Acts and Statutory Instruments.

The UK <u>Law Commission</u> keeps the law under review and makes recommends for reform where it is needed. Their reports capture in depth analysis and consultation of the current law, together with their recommendations for reform which may then make their way into law through the parliamentary process.

EU documents and publications

<u>Europa</u> is the official website of the EU. It provides access to all EU legislation, preparatory documents, treaties and case law and also secondary resources with useful background information including policy documents, statistics and reports & studies.

International Law

The <u>International Law Association</u> was founded in Brussels in 1873. Its objectives, under its Constitution, are "the study, clarification and development of international law, both public and private, and the furtherance of international understanding and respect for international law". The ILA has consultative status, as an international non-governmental organisation, with a number of the United Nations specialised agencies.

The <u>Hague Justice Portal</u> is a gateway to information, news and research on the Hague organisations in the fields of international law, justice and security.

Websites

Search engines such as Google, Bing, Yahoo etc have made it very easy to search and find information via the internet and it is highly likely that you will use the web to find information for your research.

When using material from the internet, you need to exercise caution as anyone can publish information on the web, so the quality and reliability of the information is highly variable.

Always evaluate the sources to ensure the material is trustworthy, accurate and authoritative.

Social Media

Social Media blogs, twitter feeds etc. can be useful research resources. For example, they can highlight key topics and debates that are live at particular points in time. Also many experts and organisations use these communication methods to highlight larger research projects and work. As is the case with website information, it is vital that you evaluate these resources as the quality and reliability of information will be highly variable.

IMPORTANT NOTE

Whilst we make every effort to keep the information contained in programme specification up to date, some changes to procedures, regulations, fees matter, timetables, etc may occur during the course of your studies. You should, therefore, recognise that this booklet serves only as a useful guide to your learning experience.

For updated information please visit our website www.othm.org.uk